Service, access to the Emergency Room of Billings Hospital when Student Health is closed, and hospitalization for the first five days for any single illness when authorized by a Student Health Service physician, provided the illness did not exist before the student's admission to the University.

The University requires a medical examination at time of entrance and periodic rechecks thereafter for selected diseases of concern to the health of the University community. New students on registering must make an appointment for the entrance medical examination and failure to do so or breaking an appointment after it has been made entails an added service fee of $3.00 to reimburse the University for additional expense.

The Health Service does not provide for house or room calls and, except in serious emergency and following advance authorization by Student Health Service, does not pay for ambulance or other types of transport to the Student Health Service Clinic or the Hospital Emergency Room.

PROFESSORSHIPS AND SPECIAL FUNDS

PROFESSORSHIPS

The John P. Wilson Professorship in Law was established in 1929 with funds contributed for the John P. Wilson Memorial Foundation by John P. Wilson, Jr., and Anna Wilson Dickinson as a memorial to their father, for many years an eminent member of the Chicago Bar. The holders of the John P. Wilson Professorship have been Ernst Freund, Harry Augustus Bigelow, Wilber Griffith Katz, and Roscoe T. Steffen. The present holder of this professorship is Kenneth C. Davis.

The James Parker Hall Professorship in Law was established in 1930 by the alumni of the School in memory of James Parker Hall, Dean of the School from 1904 until his death in 1928. The holders of the James Parker Hall Professorship have been Edward Wilcox Hinton, George Gleason Bogert, and Wilber Griffith Katz. The present holder of this professorship is Sheldon Tefft.

The Max Pam Professorship in Comparative Law was established in 1935 in memory of Max Pam, for many years an eminent member of the Chicago Bar, with funds allocated by the Trustees under the will of Mr. Pam. The present holder of this professorship is Max Rheinstein.

The Julius Kreeger Professorship of Law and Criminology was established in 1965 through the generosity of Mrs. Arthur Wolf, in memory of her late husband, Julius Kreeger, a graduate of the Law School in the class of 1920. The present holder of this professorship is Norval R. Morris.

Under the will of the late Harry A. Bigelow, the University is to receive, upon the death of certain life-beneficiaries, the remainder of a trust fund for the establishment of The Harry A. Bigelow Professorship in Law. Mr. Bigelow was Dean
of the Law School from 1929 to 1939 and a member of the faculty of the Law School from 1904 until his death in 1950.

Under the will of the late Leo Spitz, J.D., 1910, provision is made for the establishment of The Caroline and Henry Spitz Professorship, in honor of Mr. Spitz's parents. This is a professorship in world organization, law and government, and related problems, including the protection of human rights and the peaceful settlement of international legal and political disputes.

SCHOLARSHIP FUNDS

The James B. Blake Scholarship Fund, established in 1951 as a memorial to James B. Blake, J.D., 1907, by his friends.

The Chicago Title and Trust Company Foundation Scholarships, made possible through gifts to the Law School by the Chicago Title and Trust Company Foundation.

The Farmers Insurance Group Scholarship.

The Milton A. Gordon Scholarship, established in 1964 through the generosity of Milton A. Gordon, J.D., 1931.

The Anna Weiss Graff Honor Scholarship, established in 1961 by the Julian D. Weiss and Shirley W. Weiss Foundation.

The Francis Kosmerl Fellowships, established in 1948 by a bequest under the will of Francis Kosmerl, J.D., 1918.

The Edwin B. Mayer Scholarship.

The Class of 1915 Scholarship, endowed by the Class of 1915 and awarded annually to a second-year student in the Law School.

The Class of 1959 Scholarship, provided each year since 1960 by the members of that class.

The James Nelson Raymond Scholarship, established in 1930 from a fund given by Anna Louise Raymond in memory of her husband, James Nelson Raymond.

The Arnold I. Shure Scholarship, established by Frieda Shure in honor of Arnold I. Shure, J.D., 1929.

The Adlai E. Stevenson Scholarship, provided in 1965 by the Jewish Students Scholarship Fund.

The Leo F. Wormser Scholarships, established in 1935 by friends of Leo F. Wormser, J.D., 1909, as a memorial to him. In 1940 a gift to this fund was made by Mrs. Leo F. Wormser in memory of Mr. Wormser's mother, Mrs. Frida Wormser; from time to time additional gifts have also been made by the family and friends.
of Mr. Wormser. In 1956 the scholarship fund was augmented by a bequest from the estate of Mrs. Leo F. Wormser.

The LaVerne Noyes Foundation Scholarships, available to all students of the University who are descendants of veterans of World War I.

The Phi Sigma Delta Scholarship, established by members of the Phi Sigma Delta fraternity.

Law School Fund Scholarships. These scholarships are made possible by the contributions of alumni and other friends to the annual Law School Fund campaign. Donors who became Scholarship Patrons in 1964–65 by making gifts equal to or exceeding a full-tuition scholarship were:

Lester Abelson, J.D., 1925
Russell Baker, J.D., 1925
Roger S. Barrett
Colonel Henry Crown
Morris E. Feiwell, J.D., 1915
George E. Hale, J.S.D., 1940
Albert L. Hopkins, J.D., 1908
Walter M. Parker, J.D., 1915

Donald A. Petrie, J.D., 1947
Hon. Ulysses S. Schwartz
and Mrs. Schwartz
Jerome S. Weiss, J.D., 1930
Jerrold Wexler
Harry N. Wyatt, J.D., 1921
Anonymous Alumnus

FELLOWSHIP FUNDS

The Baker, McKenzie and Hightower Fellowships in international legal studies.

The Bayer Fellowship in Foreign Law, contributed annually by the Farbenfabriken Bayer Corporation of West Germany. The fellowship supports the work of a student in the Foreign Law Program, which is described in detail on page 00.

The James Nelson Raymond Fellowship, created in 1933 and 1934 by Anna Louise Raymond.

LOAN FUNDS

The Harry A. Bigelow Loan Fund, established in 1929 by the Law Class of 1929 in honor of the late Dean Bigelow.

The Bernhardt Frank Loan Fund, established in 1952 by Louis H. Silver, J.D., 1928, in honor of his brother-in-law, an outstanding appellate lawyer.

The Ernst Freund Loan Fund, established in 1922 by the late Professor Ernst Freund and since his death augmented by other contributions.

The Raphael and Rose Golde Loan Fund, established in 1955 by provision of the will of the late Joseph A. Golde, J.D., 1915, in memory of his parents.
The James Parker Hall Loan Fund, established by the alumni of the Law School in memory of the late Dean Hall.

The Ronald G. Hillebrand Memorial Loan Fund, established in 1962 by the Class of 1962 and other friends of Ronald G. Hillebrand in his memory; it is available to third-year, married students of the Law School.

The Law School Student Loan Fund.

The Floyd R. Mechem Loan Fund for Law Students, established in 1921 by the late Professor Floyd R. Mechem.

The Harvey Puchowitz Loan Fund, established in 1955 by friends of Harvey Puchowitz, J.D., 1954, in his memory.

The Ernst W. Puttkammer Loan Fund, established in 1956 by students in the Class of 1958.

The Anna Louise Raymond Loan Fund, established in 1932 for the benefit of students in the Law School, preference to be given to women.


The Frederick and Edith Shaffer Sass Loan Fund, established by Frederick Sass, Jr., Ph.B., 1930, J.D., 1932, and Louis Sass, S.B., 1932, in memory of their parents.

The Ben and May Shapiro Loan Fund, established by Robert B. Shapiro, J.D., 1933, in memory of his parents, is available to students, preferably in the Law School, who are dependent in whole or in part upon their own efforts to secure an education.

The Clark B. Whittier Law Loan Fund, established by Professor Clark B. Whittier, a former member of the Law Faculty.

RESEARCH AND SPECIAL FUNDS

The Frieda and Arnold Shure Research Fund was established in 1945 by Frieda and Arnold Shure for the publication of legal studies of immediate importance for the public welfare.

The Karl N. Llewellyn Memorial Fund was begun in 1962–63 by former students, colleagues, and other friends of Professor Llewellyn, to be used by the Law School for a purpose suitably recognizing his noteworthy contribution to the work of the School. A member of the Law Faculty from 1931 until his death in 1962, Professor Llewellyn was one of the outstanding figures in American legal education and scholarship.

The Leonard M. Rieser Fund was established in 1959 by the family and friends of Leonard M. Rieser, an eminent member of the Chicago Bar, and a former Lecturer
in Law at the Law School, as a memorial to him to be used in a manner consistent with his wide and varied interests in law. This fund has made possible the formation of The Rieser Society (see p. 21).

The Arnold M. Chutkow Memorial Fund was established in 1958 as a memorial to Arnold M. Chutkow, J.D., 1951, through a gift from Samuel Chutkow, 1920, and the friends and classmates of Arnold Chutkow. The income from the Arnold M. Chutkow Memorial Fund is allocated by the Dean of the Law School toward the expenses of student contestants in moot-court competitions and for the benefit of The University of Chicago Law Review.

The Andrew J. Dallstream Memorial Fund, used in support of several aspects of the School’s work, was established in 1962 by the friends and colleagues of Mr. Dallstream, J.D., 1917, an eminent Chicago attorney who had served as president of the Law Alumni Association.

LIBRARY FUNDS

The Allan T. Dunham Memorial Fund, established in 1964 by Professor and Mrs. Allison Dunham in memory of their son for a general reading collection.

The Jerome N. Frank Memorial Library Fund, established in 1961 by the friends of Judge Jerome Frank, J.D., 1913.

The William B. Hale Fund, established in 1944 by the family of Mr. Hale for the collection of materials for research and study in the field of monopoly.

The Wallace Heckman Memorial Fund, established in 1929 by Mrs. Wallace Heckman as a memorial to her husband, business manager of the University from 1903 to 1924.

The David Horwich Memorial Law Library Fund, established in 1965 in memory of David Horwich for furthering the study of Ethics and Law.

The Weymouth Kirkland Memorial Book Fund, established in 1965 through a gift in memory of Weymouth Kirkland.

The James Nelson Raymond Memorial Fund, established in 1929 by Anna L. Raymond as a memorial to her husband, James Nelson Raymond.

The Frederic Woodward Law Library Fund, established in 1961 by friends of Frederic Woodward, formerly a member of the faculty of the Law School, and a Vice-President of the University.

A special Law Library Endowment Fund has been established under the guidance and with the help of Arnold I. Shure.